
 

Newnan City Council Meeting 
JUNE 15, 2021 

Newnan City Hall 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers 

25 LaGrange Street 
6:30 PM 

 

 

NO OFF-AGENDA ITEMS OR COMMENTS WILL BE CONSIDERED AT TONIGHTS MEETING 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

INVOCATION 

READING OF MINUTES 

A. Minutes from Regular Meeting on May 25, 2021 

REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

B. 2 Appointments- Convention Center Authority, 3 year term  

C. 4 Appointments- Cultural Arts Commission, 3 year term 

D. 4 Appointments- Keep Newnan Beautiful, 3 year term 

REPORTS ON OPERATIONS BY CITY MANAGER 

E. Updates Related to Tornado Clean Up Efforts and Assistance 

F. Pinning Ceremony- New Police Chief, Brent Blankenship 

G. Comments from Retiring Police Chief, Buster Meadows 

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

H. Creation of a private non-profit organization to oversee the reforestation efforts due to the EF4 
Tornado on March 26, 2021 

NEW BUSINESS 

I. Public Hearing- Application for Alcohol Beverage License- Viet's Cuisine- Retail On Premise 
(Pouring) Sales, Malt Beverages & Wine- 30 Bullsboro Dr. - Reason: New Business 

J. Consideration of an Ordinance to Amend the 2020 Budget for Special Revenue Funds 

K. Request for street closures for Sunrise on the Square Road Race 5K on Saturday, September 
4th 

L. Consideration of Support for Downtown Traffic Safety Study regarding speed limits in downtown 
Newnan 

M. Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Newnan and the Coweta 
County Board of Commissioners for Master Planning of Caldwell Tanks and the Coweta County 
Administration Building 

N. Consideration of an Amended Resolution for Waiving Permit Fees for structures impacted by 
the Tornado on March 26, 2021 

O. Consideration of a Resolution Setting the Date for the General Election and Qualification Period 
for Candidates in the 2021 General Election 

1



NEWNAN CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA – June 15, 2021 @ 6:30 PM ................................. Page 2 

P. Consideration of a Resolution Appointing an Election Superintendent for the 2021 General 
Election 

Q. Consideration of a Resolution Calling for a Special Referendum Election Authorizing the City of 
Newnan to Issue Licenses for Package Sales of Distilled Spirits 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

R. 2nd and Final Reading- Ordinance to Amend the 2020 Fiscal Year Budget 

S. 2nd and Final Reading- Consideration of Zoning Regulation Text Amendments, Sections 2, 3, 5, 
11 and 13 

T. Public Hearing - Consideration of Zoning and Subdivision Regulation Text Amendments, 
Sections 7, 8, 9 and 10 

U. Consideration of  Acceptance of FY2021 Community Home Investment Program (CHIP) Grant 
and Authorization for the Mayor to execute all documents and assurances on behalf of the City 

V. 29 Westgate Park Ln - Schedule Public Hearing for July 20, 2021 regarding structure   

W. 62 Murray St - Schedule Public Hearing for July 20, 2021 regarding structure   

VISITORS, PETITIONS, COMMUNICATIONS & COMPLAINTS 

X. Request from Corner Arts Gallery to Close North and South Court Square for Labor Day 
Festival, 9am-4pm on Monday, September 6th 

Y. Presentation from Dr. Brendan Kelly, UWG President 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Z. Motion to Enter into Executive Session 

ADJOURNMENT 

2

appISf65605cd33804e71a7d412c13dee5220
appIS089170f84c46410b9b83a3c6020bc440


CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                        MAY 25, 2021____   

The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia was held on 
Tuesday, May 25, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers of City Hall 
with Mayor Keith Brady presiding.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Brady called the meeting to order and delivered the invocation. 
  
PRESENT 
 
Mayor Keith Brady: Council members present:  Rhodes Shell, George Alexander; Ray 
DuBose, and Dustin Koritko. Council members absent: Cynthia E. Jenkins and Paul 
Guillaume. Also present:  City Manager, Cleatus Phillips; Assistant City Manager, Hasco 
Craver; City Clerk, Megan Shea; City Engineer, Michael Klahr; City Attorney, Brad Sears 
and Police Chief, Douglas “Buster” Meadows.  
       
MINUTES – REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – MAY 11, 2021 
 
Motion by Councilman Koritko, seconded by Councilman Alexander to dispense with the 
reading of the minutes of the Regular Council meeting on May 11, 2021 and adopt them 
as presented.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0)   
 
 
APPOINTMENT- NEWNAN URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY- 3 YEAR TERM 
 
Motion by Councilman Koritko, seconded by Councilman Alexander to reappoint Tanya 
Tyson to the Urban Redevelopment Agency. 
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
 
APPOINTMENT- BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS, INTERIM APPOINTMENT UNTIL 
AUGUST 2023 
 
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Alexander to appoint Skin Edge 
V to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

3



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                        MAY 25, 2021____   

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2020 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman DuBose to adopt the 
ordinance as presented. 2nd and Final Reading next agenda.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0)  
 
CONSIDERATION OF ANNUAL CONTROLLED ASSETS & CAPITAL ASSETS 
SURPLUS PROPERTY DECLARATION AND DISPOSITION 
 
Motion by Councilman Alexander, seconded by Councilman Koritko to approve the 
declaration and disposition.  
 
     MOTION PASSED (5-0) 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A CONTRACT AWARD FOR TRAFFIC SIGN INSTALLATIONS 
 
City Manager explained that this in response to the recent storm. Hoping to get the 
contractor engaged soon as there are a lot of signs that need fixing. From a public safety 
standpoint and citizens concerns this is a pressing issue.  
 
 
Motion by Councilman DuBose, seconded by Councilman Koritko to award the contract to 
Safety Signal as recommended by City Staff.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT AWARD FOR EMERGENCY CONCRETE REPAIR 
SERVICES 
 
Assistant City Manager explained that this is also in response to the tornado. This was a 
unit-based bid and not lump sum. There was only one bid received and City Staff did 
check for competitive pricing and staff believes the pricing given is competitive.  
 
Motion by Councilman Koritko, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Shell to accept the 
recommendation and award the contract to Piedmont Paving.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING- CONSIDERATION OF ZONING REGULATION TEXT 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Mayor Brady opened the public hearing.  
 

4



CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING                                                        MAY 25, 2021____   

Dean Smith, Planner explained that this is part 2 of a 3-part process. These are text 
amendments in Articles 2, 3, 5, 11 and 13. This includes the introduction of a new 
category, micro producers such as microbreweries, microdistilleries and microwineries. 
Other changes include the removal of neon sign prohibition in the overlay district, looking 
at correcting the historic residential design overlay district map, and to allow an 
administrative variance for residential additions over a certain size not to encroach beyond 
a certain threshold in building setbacks.  
 
Mayor Brady closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Shell, seconded Councilman Alexander to adopt the 
amendments as presented. 2nd and Final Reading next agenda.  
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
      
ADJOURNMENT  
   
Motion by Councilman Koritko, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Shell to adjourn the Council 
meeting at 6:37pm.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 
     MOTION CARRIED. (5-0) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________      _________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk      Keith Brady, Mayor 
    

5



APPLICATION FOR ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE  

  

 
Name: Viet’s Cusine 

                      

Licensee:     Peter Hong 

               

License Representative:  Thi Quynh NGA Hong 

     

Type License: Retail On Premise (Pouring) Sales of Malt Beverages & Wine  

  

Location: 30 Bullsboro Dr.       

 

TO THE CITY COUNCIL: REASON – NEW BUSINESS 

 

(1) The above application with supporting documents and application fee has been filed in 

the City Clerk's office; reviewed by the appropriate departments of the City and appears to be 

(complete). (Sec 3-33) 

 

If incomplete, reasons 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(2) The citizenship requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-34) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(3) Residency requirements (have) been met. (Sec. 3-35) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(4) The location appears (to comply) with zoning requirements. (Sec 3-37) 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Application - Beverage License 

Page 2 

6



 

 

(5) The location of the proposed premises appears (to comply) with the distance 

requirements set forth in Sec. 3-39. 

 

If not, reasons ____________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

(6) All taxes or other debts to the City (are) current. (Sec 3-38) 

 

If not, reasons ___________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

(7) A publisher's affidavit (has not) been filed showing the notice requirement  

(has not) been complied with. (Sec 3-40 (a)) 

 

If not, reasons    Advertised.  Will file affidavit prior to hearing.                          

 

(8) An affidavit from the applicant certifying posting of the proposed premises (has not) been 

filed. (Sec. 3-40(b)) 

 

If not, reasons file prior to hearing                                      

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Megan Shea 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

7



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
 
 

 
Date:     June 15, 2021    
  
Agenda Item:   Ordinance to Amend 2020 Budget – Special 

Revenue Funds 
 
Prepared By:   Katrina Cline, Finance Director 
 
Presented By:   Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 
 
    

 
Purpose:   To obtain Council approval to amend the 2020 Budgets for Special Revenue 

Funds, per the attached worksheet. The Confiscated Assets expense budget is 
being amended by $41,332; the Rental Motor Vehicle Tax expense budget is being 
amended by $3,675.    

 
   
 
Background: This budget amendment will not change the actual revenues or expenditures for 

2020.  This is a requirement of GASB - to ensure that Council has approved all 
appropriations for the year indicated, regardless of the funding source. The 
attached budget amendments worksheet provides the reason for the increased 
expenses by department and line item in the comment’s column.  

 
 
  
Funding: N/A. 
 

 
 
Recommendation:    N/A. 
           
 
 
Options: 

1. Approve the 2020 Budget Amendments for Special Revenue Funds as 
submitted. 

2. Other action as directed by Council. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 2020 Budget Amendment worksheet by department and account. 
  
   

 
 
Previous Discussion with Council:   N/A. 
 
 
 
 

8



 
 

9



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2020 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED, and it is hereby ordained that the City Council has authorized an 
amendment to the 2020 Special Revenue Funds expense budgets for Confiscated 
Assets and Hotel/Motel Taxes in the amount of $41,332 and $3,675 respectively. This 
amendment ensures that all appropriations for 2020 have been approved by Council. 
Therefore, the 2020 Budget is hereby amended to include the additional appropriations, 
per the attached 2020 Budget Amendment worksheet. 
 
 
DONE, RATIFIED AND PASSED in regular session this the ______ day of 
_______________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk   L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
 
 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM:                 
      _______________________________ 
_____________________________       Rhodes H. Shell, Mayor Pro-Tem   
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  
 
 
      _______________________________ 

George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
_______________________   
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager    ________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 

      
            
________________________________ 
Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dustin Koritko, Councilmember  
 
 
________________________________ 
Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 

10



11



12



13



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and City Council 
 
Date:  June 15, 2021   
 
Agenda Item: Consideration of Support for Downtown Traffic Safety Study 

regarding speed limits in downtown Newnan 
 

Prepared by: Michael Klahr, Director of Engineering  
 
 

 
 
Purpose: The Council may consider support for a Downtown Traffic Safety Study, recommending 

lower posted speed limits for State Route 14 through town; Jackson Street, West Court 
Square, LaGrange Street, Greenville Street, East Court Square, and Jefferson Street. 

 
Background: In conjunction with representatives with Bike Coweta, the Safe Routes to School program 

of the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT), and others, a Safety Walk was 
conducted on several streets in Newnan. 

 
From the Safety Walk, observations were made and recommendations presented to 
officials with GDOT and the City of Newnan. 
 
Engineer, Vern Wilburn, Maldino & Wilburn, agreed to expand upon the recommendations 
and conduct a traffic safety study, primarily in the downtown area, to determine existing 
traffic conditions.  Speeds and volumes, vehicular, pedestrian, and bike were a focus. 
 
From the study, it was determined the 85th percentile speeds ranged from 21 MPH to 28 
MPH for Jackson Street, Jefferson Street, and Greenville Street.  The posted speed limit 
for these streets is 35 MPH. 
 
This would support lowering the posted speed limit for these streets to 25 MPH.   
 
It would ultimately be a decision by the GDOT to change the posted speed limits, however, 
staffs believe an indication of support from the City Council for doing so will be useful in 
accomplishing this change. 
 

Options: A. Forward the Downtown Traffic Safety Study to GDOT, as presented 
B. Other action as directed by Council 
 

 
Recommendation: Option A      
 
 
Attachments: Downtown Traffic Safety Study 

 
 
 

14



 
 

15



 
 

 
 
 
May 7, 2021 
 

 
Downtown Traffic Safety Study 
 
 
Prepared For: 
 
City of Newnan 
Mr. Cleatus Phiilips, City Manager 
25 LaGrange St 
Newnan, GA 30263 
770.253.2682 
 
cphillips@cityofnewnan.org 
 
 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Vern Wilburn, PE, PTOE 
Maldino & Wilburn 
1864 Lower Fayetteville Rd 
Newnan, GA  30265 
770.362.6184 
vern@mwtraffic.com 
 
 
 
Prepared on Behalf of: 
 
Bike Coweta 
Mr. Chris Doane 
678.378.3562 
Chris.doane@southerncrescentsolutions.com 
 

  
Downtown Traffic Safety Study         i 

 

 

No. 16546
PROFESSIONAL

5-5-21

16

mailto:cphillips@cityofnewnan.org
mailto:vern@mwtraffic.com
mailto:Chris.doane@southerncrescentsolutions.com


 
 

Table of Contents 
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 1 

Study Area ....................................................................................................................... 1 
Background...................................................................................................................... 1 
 

2. Location .................................................................................................................................. 2 
 
3. Existing Traffic Conditions ...................................................................................................... 3 

Daily Traffic Volumes as Reported by GDOT ................................................................... 3 
Observed Daily Volumes and Operating Speeds ............................................................. 3 
Peak Hour Volumes ......................................................................................................... 3 
Traffic Control .................................................................................................................. 6 

 Road Classification .......................................................................................................... 7 
 On-Street Parking ............................................................................................................ 7 
 Street and Land Use Inventory ........................................................................................ 7 

On-Street Parking ............................................................................................................ 7 
 Pedestrian Facilities ......................................................................................................... 7 
 
4. Crash History ........................................................................................................................ 12 
 
5. Alternate Lane Configuration ................................................................................................ 13 
 Capacity Analysis ........................................................................................................... 14 
  
6. Bicycle Facilities ................................................................................................................... 15 

Downtown Bicycle Connector ...................................................................................... 15 
 

7. Summary of Findings ........................................................................................................... 17 
 
8. Recommendations ............................................................................................................... 18 
 
 

 
Appendices .............................................................................................................................. 20 

A. Observed Daily Traffic Volume Data 
B. Observed Speed Data 
C. Observed Turning Movement Count Data 
D. Capacity Analysis Reports, Existing Conditions 
E. Capacity Analysis Reports, Alternate Lane Configuration 

List of Figures 
Figure 1: Study Area ................................................................................................................... 1 
Figure 2: Study Location ............................................................................................................ 2 
Figure 3: Daily Traffic Volumes, Source: GDOT .......................................................................... 3 
Figure 4: Existing Daily Traffic Volumes and 85th Percentile Speeds .......................................... 4 
Figure 5: Existing Peak Hour Volumes ....................................................................................... 5 
Figure 6: Existing Traffic Control ................................................................................................ 6 
Figure 6A: Existing Travel Lanes, Downtown Square ................................................................ 6 
Figure 7: Road Classifications .................................................................................................... 7 
Figure 8: Street and Land Use Inventory .................................................................................... 9 
Figure 9: Alternate Travel Lane Configuration, Downtown Square .......................................... 13 
Figure 10: Projected Traffic Volumes with Alternate Lane Configuration ................................. 13 
Figure 11: Bicycle Facilities ...................................................................................................... 15 
Figure 12: Bicycle Connector ................................................................................................... 16 
Figure 13: Recommendations .................................................................................................. 19 
 

 

List of Tables 
Table 1: On-Street Parking Inventory ......................................................................................... 8 
Table 2: Crash Data, Year 2019 ................................................................................................ 12 
Table 3: HCM Level of Service Scale ....................................................................................... 14 
Table 4: Capacity Analysis Results ........................................................................................... 14 

 
 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study         i 

 17



 
 

1. Introduction 
The report will document the work conducted to assist the City of Newnan in evaluating traffic safety 

in the Downtown Area. The study will address vehicular as well as other modes of travel including 

bicycles and pedestrians. 

 

Study Area 
Figure 1 illustrates the extent of the study. The shaded areas on the map were included in the field 

evaluation. More detailed data analysis was conducted on the highlighted streets in the focus area. 

 

Background 
A Safety Walk was conducted on several streets in Newnan by Patti Pittman of the Safe Routes To 

School program of the Georgia DOT. The walk was conducted on August 26, 2020. Ms. Pittman 

reported that the streets through town feel uncomfortable to cross and recommended consideration 

be given to lowering the speeds in town to 25 MPH. The graphic below is an expert from the report. 

 

 

 

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Clark St

Salbide Ave

General Study Area

Focus Area

LEGEND
Figure 1:

STUDY AREA

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Downtown Traffic Safety Study         1 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study         ii 

 18



 

2. Location 

Figure 2 shows the location of the study area with respect to the major roadway network. As shown, the 

City of Newnan is directly served by State Routes 14 and 34. State Route 14 is comprised of a one-way 

pair of streets through the downtown area (Jefferson and Jackson Streets). SR 34 (Clark Street) runs 

along the northern boundary of the study area. 

 

Interstate 85 is located about 2.5-3 miles from the study area, depending on which route is used. 

Three interchanges serve the study area including: SR 34, Poplar Road, and SR 14. 

 

  

General Study Area

LEGEND
Figure 2:

STUDY LOCATION

16

34

34

14

14

34

70
34

16

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

34
BP

Downtown Traffic Safety Study         2 

 19



 

3. Existing Traffic Conditions 

This chapter summarizes existing conditions data that was collected in the study area. 

 

Daily Traffic Volumes as Reported by GDOT 
Figure 3 is a screen capture from the Georgia DOT Traffic Analysis and Data Application (TADA) which 

shows the daily traffic volumes in the study area. 

 

Observed Daily Volumes and Operating Speeds 
Speed and classification counts were conducted at six (6) locations on Tuesday, February 23, 2021. 

Figure 4, on the following page, summarizes the daily volume and 85th percentile speeds measured at 

these locations. The full ADT data is provided in Appendix A and the speed data is in Appendix B. 

 

An inspection of the operating speeds shown in Figure 4 indicates that 85th percentile speeds are lower 

than the posted speed limits at all locations except for College Street, which is very close to the posted 

speed limit. 

 

Comparison of the daily volumes observed for this study to the daily volumes reported by GDOT 

indicate that the current volumes are very close to what they were prior to the COVID outbreak. 

Therefore, there was no need to normalize the data. 

 

Existing Peak Hour Volumes 
Turning movement counts (TMCs) were conducted at the four intersections on the square on Tuesday, 

February 23, 2021. Figure 5, on Page 5, summarizes the AM and PM Peak Hour Volumes. The full data 

from the TMCs is provided in Appendix C. 

 

 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Figure 3:
AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Source: GDOT TADA Website

Downtown Traffic Safety Study         3 

 20



 

Figure 4:
EXISTING DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUMES AND SPEEDS 

LEGEND

0 500’ 1,00
0’

COUNT LOCATION # 1
College St

Direction NB SB

Daily Volume 895 807

85th %tile Speed, mph 26 26

24-Hour Speed and Class 
Count Location 
(Directional)

Posted Speed Limit

COUNT LOCATION # 2
Jackson St

Direction SB

Daily Volume 11,180

85th %tile Speed, mph 28

1 2 3

COUNT LOCATION # 3
Jackson St

Direction NB

Daily Volume 10,792

85th %tile Speed, mph 27

4
COUNT LOCATION # 4

Jackson St

Direction SB

Daily Volume 9,217

85th %tile Speed, mph 21 5

COUNT LOCATION # 5
Jackson St

Direction NB

Daily Volume 7,821

85th %tile Speed, mph 21

6

COUNT LOCATION # 6
E Broad St

Direction EB WB

Daily Volume 3,190 2,313

85th %tile Speed, mph 24 23

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Clark St

Salbide Ave

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY
21



 

Figure 5:
EXISTING PEAK HOUR VOLUMES

LEGEND

9 5 5

Je
ffe

rs
on

 S
t

Ja
ck

so
n 

St

Washington St

71 73
8 26

11
8

82
8 69

12
9

73
3 74

53
181

96
155

151
140

44
46

80
124

75
116

33
7

38
30

49
15

12 81
1

18 85
1

30 72
5

21 3840

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

11
16

13
8

3 11
37 28

22 26

1 0
13 22

12 8

PEDESTRIANS & BICYCLES, NW INTERSECTION

3
4

14
12

9
11

2
0

11
8

5
9

8 14
26 30

11 18

3 2
1 6

8 3

PEDESTRIANS & BICYCLES, SW INTERSECTION

0
0

3
0

2
0

0
1

17
13

24
20

5 6
24 18

22 19

0 0
21 6

20 22

PEDESTRIANS & BICYCLES, NE INTERSECTION

2
2

15
5

10
7

0
1

7
5

4
11

2 1
13 12

12 8

0 1
13 8

18 11

PEDESTRIANS & BICYCLES, SE INTERSECTION

VEHICULAR TRAFFIC

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY 22



 

Traffic Control 
The existing traffic control on the streets within the study area is illustrated in Figure 6 to the right. 

Figure 6A below also illustrates the existing travel lanes on the downtown square. 

 

State Route 14 is comprised of a one way pair of streets through the downtown area (Jefferson and 

Jackson Streets). There is a section of SR 34 (Clark Street) along the northern boundary of the study 

area that has one-way flow westbound. 

 

There are also two local streets in the study area that have one way flow on a single block. North Court 

Square is one way westbound, while South Court Square is one way eastbound. 

 

 

 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

LEGEND
Figure 6A:

EXISTING TRAVEL LANES
DOWNTOWN SQUARE

E. Washington St

Je
ffe

rs
on

 S
t

Ja
ck

so
n 

St

S Court Sq

N Court Sq

E. Broad St

W. Washington St

W. Broad St

Not To Scale

TRAVEL LANE DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Clark St

Salbide Ave

LEGEND

Stop Sign Control

All-Way Stop

Traffic Signal Control

One Way Street

Two Way Street

Figure 6:
EXISTING TRAFFIC 

CONTROL

0 500’ 1,000’

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          6 

 23



 

Road Classification 
Figure 7 is a screen capture from the street classification map found on Georgia DOT’s website. 

 

On-Street Parking 
On-street parking is allowed on most streets in the Downtown Area. Table 1, on the following page, 

lists the streets in the focus area and provides the basic parking and geometric information for each 

street. 

 

Street and Land Use Inventory 
Figure 8, on Pages 9-11, summarizes the infrastructure, on the streets within the study area, in terms 

of street width. The adjacent land use is also indicated on Figure 8. 

 

Pedestrian Facilities 
All signalized intersections withing the study area have marked crosswalks with pedestrian signals and 

pushbutton detectors. It was observed that pedestrian recalls are apparently programmed. 

 

There is a mid-block pedestrian crossing on Jackson Street at Temple Avenue that has a Rectangular 

Rapid Flashing Beacon. Bulb-outs have been installed at this crossing. Bulb-outs are also in place at 

several other intersections. These reduce the distance that pedestrians must walk to cross streets, 

thereby limiting exposure and increasing safety. 

 

 

 
 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Principal Arterial

Minor Arterial

Local Road

LEGEND

Figure 7:
ROAD CLASSIFICATIONS

Source: GDOT Website

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          7 

 24



 

 

 

Table 1: ON-STREET PARKING INVENTORY

STREET PARKING 
CURB-CURB 

WIDTH, Ft 

ANGLE, 

Degrees 

STALL WIDTH, 

Ft 

TRAVEL-WAY, 

Ft. 

Broad St      

College St-Brown St Parallel 30  N/A See Note 

Brown St-Perry St Head-In 59 45 8.5 26 

Perry St-Railroad (North Side) Parallel 49  7 23 

Perry St-Railroad (South Side) Head-In 49 45 8.5 23 

Clark St      

College St-Jackson St None 30   30 

Jackson St-Jefferson St None 46   46 

College St      

Clark St-Spring St Parallel 24   See Note 

Jackson St/Lagrange St      

Long Pl-Gilbert St None 39   39 

Gilbert St-Spring St Parallel 49  8 32 

Spring St-Madison St Head-In 58 45 8.5 25 

Madison St-Clark St Parallel 43  9 25 

Jefferson St      

Long Pl-Westley St Head-In 58 45 8.5 25 

Westley St-Lee St Parallel 36  8 28 

Madison St      

College St-Brown St Parallel 26  N/A See Note 

Brown St-Jackson St Parallel 31  7 17 

Jackson St-Beaupel St Parallel 38  9.5 19 

Perry St      

Salbide Ave-Spring St None 35   35 

Spring St-Washington St Parallel 36  8 20 

Washington St-Madison St (West Side) Parallel 46  8 23 

Washington St-Madison St (East Side) Head-In 46   23 

Salbide Ave None 25    

Spring St      

College St-Jackson St Parallel 31    

Jackson St-Jefferson St Parallel 35   26 

Jefferson St-Perry St Parallel 38  8 21 

Washington St      

College St-Brown St Combination 58   20 

Brown St-Perry St Head-In 56   25 

 

Note: 
Parking is allowed within travel lane. No separate parking bay is available. 
Resulting travel way can be severely limited when vehicles are parked. 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          8 

 25



 

 

26



 

 

27



 

 

28



 

4. Crash History 

Crash data for each roadway segment included in the study was obtained from the Georgia Electronic 

Accident Reporting System (GEARS). Data for the last full year that data is available (2019) is presented 

in Table 1.  

 

The crash frequency is very high for all streets evaluated except for College Street. 

 

It was concluded that parking related crashes are very significant. The frequency of crashes related to 

parking is shown in the last column of Table 2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 2: CRASH DATA, YEAR 2019

STREET LENGTH ADT 
TOTAL 

CRASHES 

REAR 

END 

RIGHT 

ANGLE 

HEAD 

ON 
SIDESWIPE 

FIXED 

OBJECT 
PEDESTRIAN 

PARKING 

RELATED 

Broad St 0.38 5690 31 6 8 0 1 2 1 13 

Clark St 0.23 12300 41 20 14 2 4 1 0 0 

College St 0.44 1700 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 

Jackson St 0.72 11300 81 28 25 1 11 4 3 9 

Jefferson St 0.72 12900 76 18 16 0 17 3 1 21 

Madison St 0.39 1500 58 14 12 1 5 3 0 23 

Perry St 0.25 2800 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 

Salbide Ave 0.17 1820 16 3 6 0 2 3 0 2 

Spring St 0.24 2890 57 9 23 1 8 3 0 13 

Washington St 0.4 1570 25 4 3 0 2 1 3 12 

TOTAL 392 102 110 5 50 20 8 97 

 

 

 

 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          16 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          12 

 29



 

5. Alternate Lane Configuration 

During the field review, operational issues were observed at the intersection of Jefferson Street and 

Broad Street. Significant conflicts between pedestrians and turning vehicles were also observed on the 

north leg. The one-way flow on the west side of the intersection flows eastbound, requiring all 

approaching westbound traffic to turn right. 

 

Due to the operational issues created by having only one block of the Washington Street and Broad 

Street corridors operating as one-way flow, an evaluation was performed to estimate the impacts of 

converting these two blocks to two-way flow. Figure 9 illustrates the resulting travel lane configuration 

of the Alternate Flow Pattern. 

 

 

 

 

The traffic diversions that would result from implementing the Alternate Lane Configuration was 

estimated by analyzing the existing flow patterns around the square. The estimated traffic volumes 

with the Alternate Lane Configuration are illustrated in Figure 10. 

 

 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

LEGEND Figure 9:
ALTERNATE TRAVEL LANE 

CONFIGURATION
DOWNTOWN SQUARE

E. Washington St

Je
ffe

rs
on

 S
t

Ja
ck

so
n 

St

S Court Sq

N Court Sq

E. Broad St

W. Washington St

W. Broad St

Not To Scale

TRAVEL LANE

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Figure 10:
PROJECTED TRAFFIC 

VOLUMES WITH ALTERNATE 
LANE CONFIGURATION

Not To Scale

LEGEND

9 5 5

Je
ffe

rs
on

 S
t

Ja
ck

so
n 

St

Washington St

50 73
4 26

88 80
6 69

91 71
8 74

21
181

26
155

104
140

44
25

80
74

75
60

33
7

38
30

49
15

16
29

60
87

50
57

33 7047
4

17
11
27

15
25

31 5056

21 67
2 52

30 75
5 78

38 65
7 65

102
10

153
20

116
18

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          12 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          13 

 30



 

Capacity Analysis 
Capacity analysis was performed for existing conditions and for the projected conditions with the 

Alternate Lane Configuration using Synchro 10 software by Trafficware. The results of intersection 

capacity analyses are reported in terms of level of service, which is a function of average delay per 

vehicle, in seconds. The level of service scale according to the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) is 

shown in Table 3.  

 
Table 3: HCM LEVEL OF SERVICE SCALE 

LEVEL OF SERVICE 
AVERAGE DELAY PER VEHICLE (SECONDS) 

STOP CONTROL SIGNAL CONTROL 
A ≤10.0 ≤10.0 
B 10.1 to 15.0 10.1 to 20.0 
C 15.1 to 25.0 20.1 to 35.0 
D 25.1 to 35.0 35.1 to 55.0 
E 35.1 to 50.0 55.1 to 80.0 
F >50.0 >80.0 

 
 

The results of the capacity analysis are summarized in Table 4. Capacity analysis reports are provided 

in Appendix D for existing conditions and Appendix E for the Alternate Lane Configuration. 

 

 
Table 4: CAPACITY ANALYSIS RESULTS 

INTERSECTION 
AM PEAK HOUR NOON PEAK HOUR PM PEAK HOUR 

EXISTING. ALTERNATE EXISTING. ALTERNATE EXISTING. ALTERNATE 
Jackson St &  
N. Court Sq 

A (9.4) B (10.8) B (10.6) B (13.8) B (11.8) B (15.4) 

Jackson St &  
S. Court Sq B 

A (2.4) A (4.3) A (3.6) A (6.2) A (3.3) A (5.5) 

Jefferson St &  
N. Court Sq C 

A (2.9) A (4.3) A (5.4) A (6.4) A (6.9) A (8.1) 

Jefferson St &  
S. Court Sq C D 

B (12.8) B (14.3) B (11.1) B (18.3) B (12.4) B (13.2) 

 
 

 

The results indicate that intersection operations with the Alternate Configuration would be almost 

identical to the existing conditions. These results are as expected because the Alternate Configuration 

would have left turns occurring at some intersections where they do not currently occur. However, it 

should be noted that the Alternate Configuration would allow motorists to take more direct routes to 

their desired destination. There would also be less travel on the network. 

 

Another benefit of the Alternate Configuration is that it would reduce the vehicular/pedestrian conflict 

on the north leg of the intersection of Jefferson Street and S. Court Square/E. Broad Street. 

 

The Alternate Configuration would require modifications to the traffic signals and parking 

configurations. A rough cost estimate for these modifications is approximately $500,000. It is 

recommended that further analysis and a Benefit/Cost Study be performed to determine if the 

Alternate Configuration would provide benefits that outweigh the costs. 

  

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          14 

 31



 

6. Bicycle Facilities 

Newnan’s Multi-Use Trail System, known as the LINC, has recently been extended. What began as a 

segment between the Newnan Centre and Newnan Crossing Boulevard, now crosses Interstate 85 and 

ends at McIntosh Parkway and Ashley Park Boulevard. Another segment is planned that will extend the 

LINC system to end near the Old Railroad Depot. 

 

Downtown Bicycle Connector 
Figure 11 illustrates the LINC system that is currently planned as well as future segments that will 

connect northward to the University of West Georgia, Newnan Campus and southward to Newnan High 

School. It is important for a safe bicycle route to be provided that would connect the present and future 

LINC routes. Figure 11 shows a recommended bicycle route for such a connection that would allow safe 

bicycling through the Downtown Study Area. 

 

Figure 11 also shows the old Caldwell Tank site that has recently been purchased by the City of Newnan. 

The design of this site presents an opportunity for providing a LINC Trailhead and a connection to the 

intersection of Perry Street and Spring Street, where the recommended Bicycle Connector could begin. 

 

Figure 12 on the following page schematically illustrates how a Bicycle Connector could be installed 

along the south side of Spring Street between the Caldwell Tank Site and the rear entrance into City 

Hall (future LINC Segment). This connector could be designed as a Cycle Track rather than a bike lane, 

whereby there is some type of physical separation between vehicular traffic. 

 

It is recommended that a multi-way stop be instituted at the intersection of Perry Street and Spring 

Street. This change would enhance the safety of a future bicycle crossing of Perry Street which does 

not currently have to stop at this intersection. This change is recommended even if the bicycle facility 

is not accomplished due to the limited sight distance for motorists stopped on Spring Street attempting 

to turn onto Perry Street. Sight is obstructed by parked vehicles near the intersection. 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Figure 11:
BICYCLE FACILITIES

Co
lle

ge
St

LINC Route
(Currently Planned)

LINC Route (Future)

Addition to County Bike Route 
System (Recommended by
Bike Coweta)

Recommended Downtown
Bike Route Connection

LEGEND

Not To Scale

UWG

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          15 

 32



 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Figure 12:
BICYCLE CONNECTOR

Not To Scale

33



 

7. Summary of Findings 

The following summarizes the findings of this study: 

 

1. Jefferson and Jackson Street are a pair of one-way streets that comprise SR 14 through the 

Downtown Area of Newnan. 

 

2. SR 14 carries approximately 17,000 vehicles per day through the central part of the Downtown 

Area. 

 

3. There is significant pedestrian activity in the Downtown Area. The crosswalks typically handle 

20-30 pedestrians per hour with some over 60. 

 

4. Operational issues were observed resulting from the conflict between turning vehicles and 

pedestrian crossings. This was most pronounced at the intersections of N. Court Square and S. 

Court Square with Jefferson and Jackson Street where two-way flow changes to one-way flow 

for a single block along these east-west corridors. These are the four intersections on the 

perimeter of the Downtown Square. 

 

5. An Alternate Configuration was evaluated whereby N. Court Square and S. Court Square would 

be converted to two-way flow. The intersection levels of service would remain unchanged with 

only a slight increase in delay. However, a detailed evaluation was not done to quantify resulting 

travel time benefits from motorists being able to travel more directly to their destinations. 

 

6. The posted speed limit on the streets within the study area is 35 MPH except for College Street, 

which is 25 MPH. 

 

7. Speed studies indicated that 85th percentile speeds are as follows: 

• North end of Jefferson and Jackson Street – 27 MPH NB and 28 MPH SB 

• Jefferson and Jackson Street between Spring Street and Madison Street – 21 MPH 

• E. Broad Street - 23 MPH 

• College Street – 26 MPH 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. On-street parking is allowed on most streets in the study area. The parking is mostly head-in 

with a 45 degree angle. The parking and lane markings are such that the remaining street width 

for vehicular travel is less than standard 12 foot lanes in many cases. 

 

9. It is difficult for drivers of parked vehicles who are backing out to see on-coming vehicles, since 

their sight distance is blocked by adjacent parked vehicles. 

 

10. Evaluation of crash data for the Year 2019 indicated that crash frequencies are very high. Parking 

related crashes accounted for 57 of the total 392 crashes (14.5%). There were 8 reported pedestrian 

involved crashes in the study area during 2019. 

 

11. Newnan’s Multi-Use Trail system (LINC) will soon be extended to the eastern edge of the 

Downtown Area near the Old Railroad Station. There are also future plans to install LINC 

segments that extend from the western edge of Downtown Newnan. With the City’s purchase of 

the Caldwell Tank Site, there are opportunities for incorporating LINC.  

 

  

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          17 

 

34



 

8. Recommendations 

The recommendations of this study are shown graphically in Figure 13 on the following page and are 

summarized by immediate actions and others that will require further study, design, and consideration. 

 

Immediate Actions: 

1. Reduce speed limit from 35 MPH to 25 MPH on the following streets: 

• Jackson St – From Clark St to N. Court Sq 

• W. Court Sq – From N. Court Sq to S. Court Sq 

• LaGrange St – From S. Court Sq to Salbide Ave 

• Greenville St – From Salbide Ave to S. Court Sq 

• E. Court Sq – From S. Court Sq to N. Court Sq 

• Jefferson St – From N. Court Sq to Clark St 

 

2. Program traffic signals to operate Advanced Pedestrian Intervals (APIs) for the side street phases 

at the following 4 intersections on the Courthouse Square: 

• Jackson St & N. Court Sq 

• Jackson St & S. Court Sq 

• Jefferson St & N, Court Sq 

• Jefferson St & S, Court Sq 

It is recommended that these APIs be programmed for 3 seconds (just enough time to allow 

pedestrians to enter the crosswalk before turning vehicles but not to cause significant vehicular 

delay. If this action is taken, the pedestrian recalls should be removed. 

 

3. Install signs (R10-15) to inform turning motorists to yield to pedestrians. These should be 

installed at the 4 intersections in Item 2 above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Future Actions: 

1. Consider changing the following streets from One-Way flow to Two-Way flow: 

• N. Court Sq 

• S. Court Sq 

 

2. Provide a safe route for bicycles between the planned LINC segments on the eastern and western 

portions of Downtown Newnan (see suggestions in Figures 11 and 12). 

 

3. In conjunction with Item 2 above, include pedestrian and bicycle considerations in the design 

of the Caldwell Tank Site. 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          34 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          34 

 

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          18 

 35



 

DOWNTOWN 
TRAFFIC SAFETY 

STUDY

Co
lle

ge
 S

t

Clark St

Salbide Ave

LEGEND
Reduce Speed Limit
From 35 MPH to 25 MPH

Change From One-Way to
Two-Way Flow

LINC Multi-Use Trail

Bicycle Connector

Multi-Use Path
Incorporated into Caldwell
Tank Site Plan

Figure 13:
RECOMMENDATIONS

0 500’ 1,000’

Caldwell 
Tank Site

Downtown Traffic Safety Study          19 

 36



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 15, 2021   
 
Agenda Item:  IGA – Caldwell Tanks Master Planning 
 
Prepared by:   Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 
 
 

Purpose:     Consideration of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of 
Newnan and the Coweta County Board of Commissioners for the purpose of Master Planning 
Caldwell Tanks and the Coweta County Administration Building   
 
 
Background:    In early 2021, the City of Newnan purchased the property commonly referred to 
Caldwell Tanks and has more recently began the process of Master Planning the property.   
During the early input sessions from stakeholders it was determined that involving Coweta 
County in the process could prove to be very beneficial all parties.   The IGA as written forms a 
Joint Planning Committee that will be directed to prepare a conceptual masterplan and develop 
a recommendation that will be presented to each governing body to determine a potential path 
forward.   
 
The Joint Planning Committee will consist of two (2) elected officials and one (1) staff person 
from each entity.  If the IGA is approved, Council will need to appoint these three (3) members.   
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the IGA as presented. 
 
 
Attachments:     IGA 
 
           
Previous Discussions with Council:      N/A 

37



 1 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF COWETA 

 

 

AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN COWETA COUNTY, 

GEORGIA AND THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA, RELATING 

MASTERPLANNING AND POTENTIAL REDEVELOPMENT OF CERTAIN 

BLOCKS ON THE EASTSIDE OF DOWNTOWN NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

 

THIS AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”), made and entered into this ___ 

day of __________, 2021, by and between COWETA COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political 

subdivision of the State of Georgia (hereinafter “County”) and the CITY OF NEWNAN, 

a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (hereinafter “City”). 

 

WHEREAS, the County is the owner of property in Downtown Newnan 

commonly referred to as the Coweta County Administration Building located in the block 

bounded by Perry Street, East Broad Street, and East Washington Street; and  

 

WHEREAS, the County is also the owner of other properties in the eastern portion 

of Downtown Newnan, collectively with the Administration Building referred to 

hereinafter as “County Properties”; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of two (2) properties in Downtown Newnan 

formerly referred to as Caldwell Tanks or Brown Steel, located along East Broad Street; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is also the owner of other properties in the eastern portion of 

Downtown Newnan, collectively with the Caldwell Tanks property referred to hereinafter 

as “City Properties”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County and the City have determined that it is in the best interest 

of the parties and the community to consider joint master planning efforts and 

redevelopment opportunities in and around the above referenced properties; and 

 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the mutual benefits and consideration accruing to 

each of the parties hereto and for the use of and benefit of the citizens of the entire County, 

which benefits are hereby expressly acknowledged, the County and the City, as authorized 

by Art. IX, Sec. III, Para. I, of the Constitution of the State of Georgia, enter into this 

intergovernmental agreement for the following purposes; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Representations of the Parties.  Each party hereto makes the following 

representations and warranties, which are specifically relied upon by all of the other parties 

as a basis for entering this Agreement: 

 

38



 2 

(a) The City is a municipal corporation as defined by statutory law and 

judicial interpretation that has validly adopted this Agreement at a 

public meeting pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, O.C.G.A. § 50-14-

1, et seq.; and 

 

(b) The County has validly adopted this Agreement at a public meeting 

pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, O.C.G.A § 50-14-1, et seq. 

 

Section 2.  Obligations of the Parties.   

 

(a) The County and City each shall:  

a. Agree to the creation of a Joint Planning Committee, hereinafter 

“Committee”, which shall have the following directives and 

responsibilities:   

i. To conceptually masterplan the City Properties and County 

Properties; 

ii. To analyze the potential use of Project Delivery Methods, 

including, but not limited to, public partnerships, public/private 

partnerships, real estate agreements, financing mechanisms, and 

related matters;   

iii. To develop a recommendation (hereinafter “Final Report”) to 

the Coweta County Board of Commissioners and the Newnan 

City Council regarding the feasibility of moving the joint project 

forward. 

b. Appoint two (2) elected officials and one (1) staff person to serve on the 

Committee; 

c. Provide design professionals, at the cost of each party, to assist the 

members of the Committee and to represent the interests of each party; 

d. Mutually agree upon a financial advisor, at a 50/50 cost share, to assist 

the members of the Committee and the interests of both parties; 

 

Section 3. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence upon 

execution and shall continue until the Final Report is presented or twelve (12) months from 

the date of execution, whichever event occurs first.  

 

Section 4.  Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated at any time, with or 

without cause, by either party upon sixty (60) days written notice.   

 

Section 5.  Modification.  The parties may modify this Agreement only in writing 

by having a modification signed by all parties and adopted pursuant to the Open Meetings 

Act, O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 et seq. 

 

Section 6.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is a full and complete statement of 

the agreement of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and has been authorized by 

proper action of the respective parties. 

 

39



 3 

Section 7.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute the 

same instrument. 

 

Section 8.  Governing Law.  This Agreement and all transactions contemplated 

hereby, shall be governed by, construed and enforced according to the laws of the State of 

Georgia. 

 

Section 9.  Severability.  Should any provision of this agreement or application 

thereof to any person or circumstance be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 

this agreement, or the application of such provision, to any person or circumstance, other 

than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and 

each provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted 

by law. 

 

Section 10.  Notices.  All notices, demands, or requests required or permitted to be 

given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been 

properly given or served and shall be effective on being deposited in the United States mail, 

postage prepaid and registered, or certified with return receipt requested to the addresses 

appearing on the executed page hereof, or when delivered by hand to the addresses shown 

below or when transmitted to any telex number appearing below; provided, however, in 

those cases where a telex number is stated on the execution page for any particular party, 

notice to such party must be given by telex message to such number to be an effective 

notice hereunder: 

 

(a) Coweta County – County Administrator Michael Fouts, Coweta County Board 

of Commissioners, 22 East Broad Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263. 

 

(b) City of Newnan – City Manager Cleatus Phillips, City of Newnan, 25 LaGrange 

Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263. 

 

All notices shall be sent to the successors in office to any of the foregoing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Intentionally left blank - Signatures follow 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



 4 

SO AGREED this ____ day of _________________, 2021. 

 

 

      COWETA COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

 

      By: 

       ______________________________ 

Chairman 

         

 

ATTEST: ___________________________ 

Clerk 

         [SEAL] 

 

     

 

 

 

      CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

      Acting by and through the Mayor 

      And Council 

 

 

      By:_______________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

      ATTEST:___________________________ 

        Clerk 

          

         [SEAL]  

   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 15, 2021   
 
Agenda Item:  Amendment to April 13 Tornado Resolution 
 
Prepared by:   Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 
 
 

Purpose:     Consideration of an amended resolution for waiving permit fees for structures 
impacted by the tornado on March 26, 2021.     
 
 
Background:    On April 13, 2021, Council adopted a resolution regarding the waiver of 
certainly policy(s) pertaining to the rebuilding of structures damaged by the tornado.   One of 
those was the waiver of permit fees when property owners were uninsured or had received 
financial assistance to help with the payment of the deductible.   
 
This amendment waives permit fees for all structures in the tornado path provided the 
ownership has not changed since the storm.  The amendment also established a refund 
process for previously paid fees.    
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the amended resolution as presented. 
 
 
Attachments:     Amended Resolution 
 
           
Previous Discussions with Council:      April 13, 2021 

42



1 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND A RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

 ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR STRUCTURES IMPACTED  
BY THE TORNADO AND SEVERE STORM WHICH BEGAN ON 
MARCH 25, 2021 AND CONTINUED INTO MARCH 26, 2021 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia adopted a resolution 
dated April 13, 2021 with regard to City regulations governing the repair or restoration 
of buildings and structures including buildings and structures which were damaged by 
the tornado and severe storm which impacted certain properties in the City on the 
evening of March 25, 2021 and the early morning of March 26, 2021 (the “Disaster”); 

and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia finds it in the best 
interests of the health, safety, and welfare of the public to adopt an amendment to the 
policy established by the resolution referenced herein above. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia and it is hereby ordained by the authority of the same that: 
 
 

1. 
 

 This amended policy and the authority delegated by the City Council of the City 
of Newnan, Georgia herein shall still only apply to the property owners of buildings and 
structures located in the Tornado Zone as delineated and described in Paragraph 2 
hereinbelow at the time of the Disaster (the “Qualified Property Owner”).  If ownership 
of the impacted property changes, the development and zoning regulations set forth in 
the City’s Code of Ordinances and Zoning Ordinance shall be enforced. 
 

2. 
 

 The City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia hereby amends the policy 
established by the resolution adopted April 13, 2021 by further waiving all Building 
Permit Fees set forth in Chapter 5. Buildings and Building Regulations, Appendix. Permit 
Fee Schedule of the City of Newnan Code of Ordinances for structures damaged by the 
Disaster which are listed in the Joint GEMA and FEMA Preliminary Damage Assessment 

and located in the tornado storm path delineated and designated by (NOAA/NWS for 
March 25, 2021/March 26, 2021) (the “Tornado Zone”) and for which property owners 
can submit documentation of the subject impacted property being damaged by the 
Disaster. 
 
 

3. 
 

 Any Qualified Property owner who had previously paid a permit fee or previously 
had a permit fee paid on his behalf by a 3rd Party after March 26, 2021 may seek a 
refund from the City of the permit fee paid by filing a claim for refund with the City 

43



2 
 

Building Department within 60 days from the date of adoption of this amended 
resolution. 

 
4. 
 

 This amended policy and the provisions contained herein will expire April 12, 
2023 unless it is extended or terminated by the City Council of the City of Newnan, 
Georgia. 
 
 
 SO RESOLVED, in lawfully assembled open session this _____ day of 
_____________, 2021. 
 

 
ATTEST:     _____________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk     
      _____________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  _____________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 

44



45



46



47



 1 

RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A SPECIAL REFERENDUM ELECTION 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF NEWNAN, GEORGIA 

TO ISSUE LICENSES FOR THE PACKAGE SALE OF DISTILLED SPIRITS 

 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 3-4-41 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated 

provides that in the event the governing authority of any municipality desires to 

exercise the powers authorized by Section 3-4-41 of the Official Code of Georgia 

Annotated, which section provides that a municipality may authorize, through proper 

resolution or ordinance, the issuance of licenses for the package sale of distilled spirits 

within the City limits of the City of Newnan; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 3-4-41(a) of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated 

provides that such authorization is conditioned upon a special referendum election 

wherein the voters of the municipality vote on the question of whether or not the 

governing authority of the municipality shall be authorized to issue licenses for the 

package sale of distilled spirits within the City limits of the City of Newnan;  and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Newnan has determined that it is 

desirable to exercise the powers authorized by Section 3-4-41(a) of the Official Code 

of Georgia Annotated within the City limits of the City of Newnan;  provided more 

than one-half of the votes cast in the special referendum election are in favor of issuing 

licenses for the package sale of distilled spirits.;  and 

 WHEREAS, Section 21-2-540 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated 

designates the first Tuesday following the first Monday in November, 2021;  said date 

being November 2, 2021, as a date on which a special referendum election may be held 

for the purpose of a referendum called under Section 3-4-41(a) of the Official Code of 

Georgia Annotated;  and 

48



 2 

 WHEREAS, there has been no special referendum election held by the City of 

Newnan to determine whether its governing authority shall be authorized to issue 

licenses for the package sale of distilled spirits within the City limits of the City of 

Newnan within the two (2) year period immediately preceding the date of this 

resolution. 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NEWNAN that the Election Superintendent for the City of Newnan be and 

is hereby authorized to issue a notice of the call of a special referendum election to be 

held on Tuesday, November 2, 2021, for the purpose of submitting to the voters of the 

City of Newnan, the question of whether or not the City Council of the City of 

Newnan shall be authorized to issue licenses for the package sale of distilled spirits 

within the City limits of the City of Newnan. 

 FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following notice of special referendum 

election be published once a week for two (2) weeks, immediately preceding the date 

of the election in the official organ of Coweta County, Georgia: 

 

NOTICE OF ALL OF SPECIAL REFERENDUM ELECTION 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Newnan, Georgia, will hold a Special 
Referendum Election on Tuesday, November 2, 2021, for the purpose of voting 

on the question of whether or not the governing authority of the City of 
Newnan, Georgia, shall be authorized to issue licenses for the package sale of 

distilled spirits. 
 

The ballot will read as follows: 
 

“[   ] YES  Shall the issuance of licenses for the package 

   sale of distilled spirits be approved?” 
 

   [   ] NO 

49



 3 

 
 Those desiring to vote in favor of the issuance of licenses shall vote “yes”.  

Those desiring to vote against the issuance of the licenses shall vote “no”. 
 

 Only those voters registered in City of Newnan elections shall be allowed to 
vote in the Referendum Special Election. 

 
      Jane Scoggins 
      Election Superintendent 

      City of Newnan 
 

 FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution as the notice of the 

call of the special referendum election be published on Wednesday, September 15, 

2021, in the official organ of Coweta County, Georgia, pursuant to O.C.G.A. 21-2-

540. 

 FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to notify the City 

Election Superintendent of the referendum by forwarding to the Superintendent a copy 

of this resolution. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the registration books to register voters to 

vote in the special referendum election are to be held open until 4:30 p.m.  on the 4th 

day of October, 2021. 

  

50



 4 

 IT IS SO RESOLVED this _______ day of ______________________, 2021, by 

the City Council of the City of Newnan, Georgia. 

 
ATTEST:     _____________________________________ 
      L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk     
      _____________________________________ 
      Rhodes H. Shell, Mayor Pro-Tem 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________  _____________________________________ 
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________  _____________________________________ 
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager  Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Dustin Koritko, Councilmember 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Paul Guillaume, Councilmember 
 

 

51



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE 2020 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, and it is hereby ordained that the City Council has authorized an 
amendment to the 2020 General Fund revenue and expense budgets in the amount of 
$1,126,775 each. This amendment ensures that all appropriations for 2020 have been 
approved by Council. Therefore, the 2020 Budget is hereby amended to include the 
additional appropriations, per the attached 2020 Budget Amendment worksheet. 
 

 
DONE, RATIFIED AND PASSED in regular session this the ______ day of 
_______________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________   ________________________________ 
Megan Shea, City Clerk   L. Keith Brady, Mayor 
 
 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM:                 
      _______________________________ 

Rhodes Shell, Mayor Pro Tem 
_______________________  
C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney  
      ________________________________ 

George M. Alexander, Councilmember 
 
_______________________   
Cleatus Phillips, City Manager    ________________________________ 
      Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 

      
            
________________________________ 
Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dustin K. Koritko, Councilmember  
 
 
________________________________ 
Paul L. Guillaume, Councilmember 

 

52



DONE, RATIFIED AND PASSED in regular session, on second reading this the ______day of 

________________2021. 

 

 

ATTEST:       

 

________________________ 

Megan Shea, City Clerk  

 

 

REVIEWED AS TO FORM:   

      

       

_________________________   

C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Keith Brady, Mayor 

 

 

________________________________ 

Rhodes Shell, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Alexander, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Dustin K. Koritko, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Paul L. Guillaume, Councilmember 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

53



54



55



56



DONE, RATIFIED AND PASSED in regular session, on second reading this the ______day of 

________________2021. 

 

 

ATTEST:       

 

________________________ 

Megan Shea, City Clerk  

 

 

REVIEWED AS TO FORM:   

      

       

_________________________   

C. Bradford Sears, Jr., City Attorney 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Cleatus Phillips, City Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Keith Brady, Mayor 

 

 

________________________________ 

Rhodes Shell, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

________________________________ 

George M. Alexander, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Cynthia E. Jenkins, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Raymond F. DuBose, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Dustin K. Koritko, Councilmember 

 

 

________________________________ 

Paul L. Guillaume, Councilmember 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

57



 

City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing – Zoning Regulations Text Amendments to 
Articles 7, 8, 9 and 10 and Subdivision Regulations Multiple 
Sections 

Prepared By: Dean Smith, Planning and Zoning Department 

 

 
Purpose:  To conduct a public hearing to consider adopting text amendments to Articles 7, 8, 9 and 10 of 

the City of Newnan’s Zoning Regulations and several sections of the Subdivision Regulations. 

Background:   This item is a continuation of a prior hearing in March 2021, wherein staff presented 

several text amendments of zoning regulations to City Council.  This item is the last of three text 

amendment presentations.  Council previously approved a text amendment to the Mixed Use 

Development District ordinance in April 2021 and to Zoning Ordinance Articles 2, 3, 5, 11 and 13 in May, 

2021  

A few highlights of these particular text amendments are:  Allowing for an increase in drive-through 

menu signs; change in the parking space calculations for restaurants; relaxing the distance between 

digital monument signs; allowing the City to administratively approve new streets and some 

housekeeping issues clarifying the water protection zone map and simplifying the local ordinance 

requirements pertaining to compliance with the State of Georgia Department of Community Affairs 

Development of Regional Impact requirements. 

Funding: N/A 

 
Recommendation:  Approve the text amendments to the Zoning Regulations and Subdivision 
Regulations 

 
Previous Discussion with Council:  March 23, 2021, April 27, 2021 and May 25, 2021 

  

58



.  Proposed new language is bold and highlighted in yellow.  Proposed language to be removed 

in red and strikethrough. 

 

Article 7 – Parking and Loading Requirements 

 

The amendment in this article is to change Fast Food Restaurants parking calculations.  This 

change comes from an analysis of current and proposed new fast food restaurants and to 

accommodate the need for this type of restaurant to have adequate parking. 

 

 
 

Article 8 – Sign Regulations 

 

Proposed changes in this article germinated from the results of past variance cases.  We took a 

look at our ordinance and current trends and determined that what we currently have was too 

restrictive.  Drive-throughs have grown in the past year and will continue to grow.  To allow for 

more menu boards based upon drive-through lanes instead of drive-through windows made sense 

to us.  Also, to the reduce the distance requirement for digital monument signs from 1 mile 

(5,000 feet) to 100 feet on the same side of the road was consistent with several other 

jurisdictions.  The 5,000 foot criteria originally came from the digital billboard (interstate signs) 

separation requirements which makes sense when you are looking a billboard on the interstate, 

but not always applicable off of the interstate. 

 

59



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

60



Article 9 – Environmental Protection 

 

This change is a housekeeping issue and clarifies the boundaries of the Water Resource 

Protection District and adding a clearer map of the water protection zones. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

61



Article 10 – Procedures and Permits 

 

This amendment seeks to streamline our ordinance when it involves the Development of 

Regional Impact (DRI) process.  Instead of having to modify our local ordinance to keep up with 

changing State guidelines, simplifying it to the Department of Community Affair’s guidelines 

helps us not to create any conflicting local ordinances. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

62



Subdivision Regulations 

 

The changes being proposed have evolved over time as we have made other changes in our 

subdivision approval processes, including expanding the City’s Engineering Department which 

has enhanced our plat review process.  Several Georgia jurisdictions have moved the procedure 

of accepting streets into their public right-of-way systems to an administrative function.  The 

language proposed was borrowed from other jurisdictions.  This language is also recommended 

by the GDOT whenever we notify them of local road activity. 

 

 
 

 

63



 
 

 
 

64



City of Newnan, Georgia – City Council 
 
Date:  June 15, 2021 
 
Agenda Item:   Acceptance of a FY2021 Community Home Investment 

Program (CHIP) grant award and authorization for the Mayor 
to execute all necessary documents and assurances on behalf 
of the City 

 
Prepared and Presented by:  Tracy Dunnavant, Planning Director 
 

 
Purpose:  To accept the CHIP grant award and authorize the Mayor to execute all necessary documents 
and all assurances on behalf of the City. 
 

Background:  The City of Newnan has been awarded a CHIP grant to benefit low- and moderate-income 

persons in the amount of $400,000.  As part of the process, the City must determine whether or not to 

accept the award and authorize the Mayor to sign the pertinent documentation and all assurances on 

behalf of the City.  The funds will be used to rehab the homes of qualified homeowners within the Chalk 

Level area.  The grant award period will begin on August 1, 2021 and run for a two-year period. 

Funding: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Authorize acceptance of the CHIP funds and the execution of all necessary 
documents and assurances on behalf of the governing body by the Mayor. 
 
Previous Discussion with Council:  September 21, 2020; December 8, 2020; January 12, 2021 

 

65



1

Tracy Dunnavant

To: Tracy Dunnavant
Subject: RE: 2021 CHIP Awards

Good afternoon,

The Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) has awarded $7 million in grant funds to 15 local
communities around the state through the DCA 2021 Community HOME Investment Program (CHIP). The CHIP
funds are part of an annual allocation of HOME Investment Program (HOME) funds received from the US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). These funds assist the efforts of local governments,
nonprofit organizations, and public housing authorities with providing safe and affordable housing within our
Georgia communities. In addition to HOME funds, the selected communities will contribute over $4.6 million in
matching funds to the grant awards. New construction applicants received an award of $600,000 to provide
single-family homes for very low to low income-eligible homebuyers. This year the CHIP award for housing
rehabilitation was increased to $400,000 to better serve our communities across the state. Also, a new set aside
of funding was made available for applicants that showcased community-wide improvements through innovative
and supportive activities and had not received CHIP within the last ten years.

The 2021 CHIP grants are awarded to:

Cities CHIP Funds
Awarded Activity

Americus $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Byron $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Cochran $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation
Centerville $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Gainesville $ 600,000.00 New Construction

Douglas $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Newnan $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Vienna $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Nonprofits CHIP Funds
Awarded Activity

Atlanta Neighborhood Development
Partnership (ANDP) (South Dekalb County $ 600,000.00

New Construction

Family Community Housing Association
(FCHA)(Covington) $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Habitat for Humanity of Conyers Rockdale $ 600,000.00 New Construction

Jackson Habitat for Humanity $ 600,000.00 New Construction

New Foundations Development, Inc (NFD)
(Calhoun, GA) $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

PUSH Ministry (South Atlanta) $ 400,000.00 Owner-occupied Rehabilitation

Rabun County Habitat for Humanity $ 600,000.00 New Construction

Awardees will receive additional information by email in the following weeks.
66



2

If you have any questions, please contact DaTonya Lewis at datonya.lewis@dca.ga.gov.

Thank you for your applications and continued support of CHIP.

Learn more about our commitment to
fair housing.

DaTonya Lewis
Community Housing Program Manager
Georgia Department of Community Affairs
60 Executive Park South, NE
Atlanta, Georgia 30329

Direct +14048522160
datonya.lewis@dca.ga.gov

67



Sub-standard City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and 
Council 

 
Date: June 7, 2021  
 
Agenda Item:  62 Murray St 
 
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      To schedule the public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure 
located at 62 Murray St.  

 
 
Background:  Owner: A&C Renovations LLC 
                                   Permits: Interior Demo 10/20 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: January 27, 2020. 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
Previous inspections by Newnan Building Department have deemed the 
property to be unsafe. Information was presented to Council electronically 
concerning the condition of the above mentioned property on January 28, 
2020.  

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Set Public Hearing Date for July 20, 2021.  
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
January 28, 2020 - Council informed of conditions.    
 

 

68



 
 

 

 
 
 
    

 

69



City of Newnan, Georgia - Mayor and Council 
 
Date: June 7, 2021  
 
Agenda Item:  29 Westgate Park Ln 
  
Prepared and Presented by: 
Matt Murray, Code Enforcement Officer 
 
Submitted by: Bill Stephenson, Chief Building Official 

 
 
 

Purpose:      To schedule the public hearing concerning the dilapidated structure 
located at 29 Westgate Park Ln.  

 
 
Background:  Owner: Najarian Capital LLC 
                                   Permits: none 
 Date Sub-Standard housing file was opened: May 28, 2020 
 

Does the cost to bring this structure into compliance by means of repair 
exceed 50% of the structure’s assessed tax value? YES  
 
Previous inspections by Newnan Building Department have deemed the 
property to be unsafe. Information was presented to Council electronically 
concerning the condition of the above mentioned property on May 27, 
2021.  

 
 
 
Options:              

1. Set Public Hearing Date for July 20, 2021.  
2. Other direction from Council. 

 
 
Funding:       Not Applicable 
 
 
Recommendation:   Staff is requesting Council’s approval to proceed with Option 1. 
       
 
Previous Discussions with Council:            
 
May 27, 2021 - Council informed of conditions.    
 
 
    

70



 
 

 

 
 

 

 

71



72



73



Motion to Enter into Executive Session 
 
I move that we now enter into closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4 and 
pursuant to advice by the City Attorney, for the purpose of discussing  
 
 
And that we, in open session, adopt a resolution authorizing and directing the Mayor or 
presiding officer to execute an affidavit in compliance with O.C.G.A. §50-14-4, and that 
this body ratify the actions of the Council taken in closed session and confirm that the 
subject matters of the closed session were within exceptions permitted by the open 
meetings law. 
 
 

Motion to Adopt Resolution after Adjourning Back into Regular Session 
 
I move that we adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the affidavit stating 
that the subject matter of the closed portion of the council meeting was within the 
exceptions provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-4(b). 
 

74


	Top
	A.	Meeting Minutes 5/25/21
	5.25.21 minutes

	B.	2 Appointments- Convention Center
	C.	4 Appointments- CAC
	D.	4 Appointments- KNB
	E.	Tornado updates
	F.	Pinning Ceremony- Brent Blankenship
	G.	Retiring Police Chief comments
	H.	Creation of Non-Profit for Reforestation
	I.	PH- Application for Alcohol Viet's Cuisine
	Viet&#39;s Cusine 6.15.21

	J.	Ordinance to Amend 2020 Budget for Special Revenue Funds
	Agenda Item Submission Budget Amendment

	K.	Street Closures & Intermittent Traffic Control for Sunrise on the Square Road Race 5K
	GA19040WC map and Certificate  Sunrise on the Square 5k

	L.	Indication of Support for Downtown Traffic Safety Study
	agendaitem- Consideration of a Indication of Support Downtown Traffic Safety Study
	Traffic Safety Study

	M.	IGA for Master Planning Caldwell tanks
	agendaitem.caldwellmasterplanningIGA6.9.21
	2021.CowetaNewnanPlanningIGA5.25.21 (mdf redline)

	N.	Amend Tornado Resolution
	cover for amended tornado resolution
	Resolution to Amend Tornado Resolution dated April 13 2021 (6-8-2021)

	O.	Resolution Setting Election Qualifying Dates
	Brads Memo for election resolutions
	Resolution setting qualifying dates

	P.	Resolution Appointing Election Superintendent
	Resolution appointing election superintendent

	Q.	Resolution for Package Distilled Spirits
	resolution -special referendum election-Packaged Sales-Distilled Spirits (6-4-2021)

	R.	2nd and Final Reading- Budget Amendment
	Budget Amendment Ordinance
	Ordinance 2ndpage 2021

	S.	2nd and Final Reading- Zoning Text Amendments
	Zoning text amendments ord from 5.25.21
	Ordinance 2ndpage 2021

	T.	Public Hearing - Amendments to the City of Newnan Zoning Ordinance and Subdivision Regulations
	Council Agenda Item-6-15-21

	U.	CHIP Grant Acceptance & Authorization for Mayor to Execute Documents and Assurances
	Council Agenda Item - CHIP Acceptance and Execution Authorization

	appISf65605cd33804e71a7d412c13dee5220
	appIS089170f84c46410b9b83a3c6020bc440
	X.	Labor Day Festival
	Labor Day Festival 9.6.21

	Y.	Presentation from Dr. Kelly UWG
	Z.	Motion to Enter into Executive Session
	Motion to Enter into Executive Session

	Bottom

